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Clarifications:
ADDENDUM NO. 3


RFP 25-14 YCCD Unarmed Security Services
Date: 02/12/2026

Date:  February 9, 2026	



1. Question: Labor Requirements: Does the District currently have any Labor Union requirements or Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA) in place for unarmed security services that would impact staffing or wage structures?

Answer:  No.  The District does not currently have any labor union requirements or collective bargaining agreements in place for unarmed security services that would impact staffing or wage structures. 

2. Question:  Supervisor Staffing: While the RFP outlines supervisory responsibilities, it does not specify the required number of supervisors or their shift distribution. Does the District have a preferred supervisor-to-guard ratio to ensure the mandated 2-hour check-ins and weekly lockdown verifications are met?

Answer:  The District would like to see as a minimum that there would be a Manager that administers the contract and one supervisor for each College; 1. Woodland Community College Campus and Lake County Campus) and 2. Yuba College, Marysville Campus and the Sutter County Campus. The every 2-hour check-ins need to occur whenever the Supervisors are on shift. The Security Firm will share the Supervisor shift hours schedule.  The weekly lockdown checks / verifications are to be performed at each location weekly to ensure that all exterior doors of buildings are being properly and completely secured and locked when they are scheduled. 

3. Question: Vehicle Pricing Structure: Appendix A includes line items for "Security Firm Vehicles". Does the District prefer these costs quoted as a fixed annual rate per location, or should they be incorporated into the burdened hourly rate for the personnel?

4. Answer:  Please refer to the updated Appendix A Bid Form, Exhibit A, which is attached to this Addendum. 

5. Question: What is the unburdened security guard hourly compensation rate?

Answer:  The District has changed the required security guard unburdened compensation rate from $22/hour to $18.00/hour.  The Security Firm may compensate at any rate they choose at or above $18.00/hour as the unburdened security guard hourly rate. 


6. Question:  Patrol Distribution (Static vs. Mobile): To help us accurately calculate fuel and maintenance, could the District provide a more specific hour or percentage breakdown for static/foot patrol versus mobile/vehicle patrol?
Answer:  The approximate percentage of static/foot patrol vs. mobile/vehicle patrol will depend on the campus size, the need to enhance visible deterrence, the number of students and staff, and is roughly shown below:
	No.
	Campus Location
	Static / Foot Patrol %
	Mobile/Vehicle Patrol %

	1
	Yuba College Campus, Marysville 
	50%
	50%

	2
	   -Sutter County Campus
	70%
	30%

	3
	Woodland Community College Campus
	50%
	50%

	4
	   -Lake County Campus
	70%
	30%


It is important that at night when it is dark that there be a visible presence at the campus locations, the percentage of vehicle time driving around with the light bar flashing will likely increase by 10 to 20% percent at night.  It will also depend on how long it takes the security guards to walk the campus locations and secure the exterior doors or unlock the exterior doors of the buildings. Conducting stationary observation intermittently from the patrol vehicle is acceptable; however, it is expected that they will be driving around actively patrolling whenever they are in the vehicle unless provided other direction or there is an event at the campus.  During these times, the security guard vehicle may be stationed at a main entrance when vehicles are entering and leaving the campus to provide an active security presence. It is not expected that the security guards will leave their security guard vehicles with the flashers ON and enter their own private vehicles so that they can surf their personal cell phones or sleep at night.

7. Question: How should the proposal be formatted?  
Answer: Please format the proposal so that each of the items listed in the RFP are cross referenced by number in the RFP and easily identified.  This will allow the evaluators to look for and find the support information in the Proposal to ensure that everything in the RFP is also included in the proposal. Please follow this guidance as best you can.  Thank you. 
8. Question: What is the unburdened hourly rate for the security guards?

Answer: After further discussion, the District has changed the unburdened hourly rate from $22/hour to $18/hour.  

9. Question:  Should we show the unburdened hourly rate of $18/hour for security guards in our base bid?
Answer: Yes, please include the unburdened hourly rate of $18/hour in the base bid. Also show the burdened hourly rate. 


10. Question: Should the Deductive Alternate No. 1 just show the reduction in guard hours as a cost reduction and do you expect to see an Administrative and Other items cost reduction for each location with a reduction in hours?
Answer: Yes, please do show in Deductive Alternate No. 1 all of the reductions in cost due to the reductions in guard hours and the reduced number of hours and other costs associated with the reductions in hours per the Revised Bid Form in Exhibit A. 
11. Question: Do you want the proposal to confirm the “roll-out” process and schedule to implement the contract with details, hiring of guards, training, and when the guards will begin working at each location? Does the Firm need to share all of the screening and training information, including the English Language Competency testing and verifications to the District before any Guards begin working at the College campus locations?
Answer: Please share all of the details regarding the “roll-out” process and schedule. Please also plan to share all of the guard hiring screening, testing, and English Language Competency testing information to the District for review and approval before any of the Guards begin working at any of the College Campus locations. 
12. Question: Do the Security Guards need to have all of their uniforms, equipment, and vehicles before they begin working at the College Campus locations?  
Answer: Yes, definitely.
13. Question: Does the District need to approve the Uniforms and the equipment that the guards wear on their belts?
Answer: Yes. Please share this information in your proposal for review and approval.  Please share photos of the uniforms, equipment, tools, and vehicles. 
14. Question:  Does the District need to know what the Security Firm’s internal security guard performance assessment program looks like and what disciplinary steps are taken when the security guard does not meet expectations?
Answer: Yes, this information is required to be part of the proposal.
15. Question:  If the Unarmed Security Services Firm has any suggestions to enhance the provided services, would this information need to be part of the proposal?
Answer: Yes, please share any suggestions or recommendations that you feel would improve the security services described in this RFP.  If there are any additional costs associated with the recommendations, please show them as Additive or Deductive Alternates in the Bid Form. The Security Firm may add to the Bid Form but shall not remove anything that is shown in the Bid Form. The Base Bid information and the Deductive Alternative No. 1 information shall not be changed so that the District may compare “apples to apples” between Firms. 
Exhibit A: Updated RFP25-14 Appendix A Bid Form

	
Appendix A: Revised Proposal Base Bid Form:
	No.
	Description
	Unburdened Hourly Rate
	Burdened Hourly Rate
	
Annual Cost

	1
	Yuba College Coverage (24 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 8,760
	$
	$
	$

	2
	Yuba College Coverage (8 hours/day, 5 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 2,920
	$
	$
	$

	3
	Yuba College Administrative and Other Costs:
	
	
	$

	4
	Woodland Community College Coverage (24 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 8,760
	$
	$
	$

	5
	Woodland Community College, Administrative and Other Costs:
	
	
	$

	6
	Lake County Campus Coverage (24 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 8,760
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	7
	Lake County Campus, Administrative and other costs:
	
	
	$

	8
	Sutter County Campus Coverage (16 hours/day, 5 days/week excluding holidays, 261-22=239 days).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 3,824
	$
	$
	$

	9
	Sutter County Campus, Administrative and other costs:
	
	
	$

	10
	Sub-Total Cost:
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 



Note: Per Question No. 5 and 9, the unburdened security guard hourly rate has been changed from $22/hour to $18/hour. 

Appendix A, Exhibit A, Continued: Revised Proposal Base Bid Form:
Security Service Firm Vehicles Costs Summary:
	No.
	Description
	Monthly Rate
	
Annual Cost

	11
	Yuba College, Security Firm Vehicle
	$
	$

	12
	Woodland Community College, Security Firm Vehicle
	S
	S

	13
	Lake County Campus, Security Firm Vehicle
	$
	$

	14
	Sutter County Center, Security Firm Vehicle
	$
	$

	15
	Sub-Total:
	$
	$

	16
	Base Bid Total Costs:
	$
	$



Please provide photos and descriptions of the Security Services Firm Vehicles that the security guards will be driving. Please describe if the vehicles have a dash camera or GPS tracking feature. All vehicles shall be maintained in functional safe driving condition without dents and damage to the vehicle and presenting the logo of the security Firm and the fixed professional looking Light Bar on the top of the vehicle. 

Appendix A, Exhibit A, Continued: Revised Proposal Base Bid Form:


	17
	Deductive Alternate No. 1 (Revised Guard Hours)
	
	
	

	18
	Yuba College Coverage (24 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 8,760 No change in Guard hours
	$
	$
	$

	19
	Yuba College Coverage (8 hours/day, 5 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours:  Zero, No Hours, show cost reduction.
	$
	$
	$

	20
	Yuba College Administrative and Other Costs:
Reduced due to fewer Guard hours?
	
	
	$

	21
	Woodland Community College Coverage (16 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 5,860, show cost reduction.
	$
	$
	$

	22
	Woodland Community College, Administrative and Other Costs:  Reduced, due to fewer Guard hours?
	
	
	$

	23
	Lake County Campus Coverage (16 hours/day, 7 days/week including holidays).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 5,860, show cost reduction.
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	24
	Lake County Campus, Administrative and other costs: Reduced, due to fewer Guard hours?
	
	
	$

	25
	Sutter County Campus Coverage (16 hours/day, 5 days/week excluding holidays, 261-22=239 days).  Include hourly rate and total annual cost – estimated annual hours 3,824 No change
	$
	$
	$

	26
	Sutter County Campus, Administrative and other costs: No change in guard hours
	
	
	$

	27
	Sutter County Center, Security Firm Vehicle REMOVED, show cost reduction.
	$
	$
	$

	28
	Deductive Alternate No. 1 Reduction in Total Cost per line items 17-27 above:
	$ 
	$ 
	$ 

	29
	Total Base Bid Cost (line no. 16) Minus the Deductive Alternate No. 1 Cost Reductions: 
	$
	$
	$



All of the costs shall be rounded to the nearest dollar (without pennies).  Please also check the totals to make sure they are accurately shown. 
The Security Firm shall describe all benefits, taxes, and costs in the burdened hourly rate including:
A. Paid vacation
B. Paid sick leave
C. Paid holidays
D. Other paid leave
E. Paid training
F. Paid stipends if any
G. Medical, Dental, Vision Insurance
H. Retirement programs if any.

Security Guard Services are not required to compensate security guards at prevailing wage rates in the State of California per:

Section 16000 of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations specifically identifies two exceptions to the requirement that maintenance projects are subject to prevailing wage requirements: 

· Exception: 1: Janitorial or custodial services of a routine, recurring or usual nature is excluded. 
· Exception: 2: Protection of the sort provided by guards, watchmen, or other security forces is excluded. (8 CCR § 16000,emphasis added.)

Section 2.8.4 of the DIR’s Public Works Manual confirms this exclusion by identifying specifically defined categories of work that are excluded from prevailing wage requirements, including the following:

· The “maintenance” definition also excludes from the prevailing wage requirements protection of the sort provided by guards, watchmen, or other security forces.” (8 CCR § 16000.)

· Security services contractors therefore are NOT subject to prevailing wage requirements, unless their services are expanded to include installation, construction, repair, or similar work.

Provide price proposals (Appendix A) for unarmed security personnel for regular, overtime, and holiday coverage. Explain in detail your company’s overtime pay; i.e. what is considered overtime pay and how is it calculated? Explain in detail your company’s holiday pay; i.e. how it is calculated?


A list of the types of employees and their hourly burdened wage rates shall be provided.




The End.
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